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Persons filing written submissions
must file the original document
electronically on or before the deadlines
stated above and submit eight (8) true
paper copies to the Office of the
Secretary by noon the next day,
pursuant to section 201.4(f) of the
Commission’s Rule of Practice and
Procedure (19 CFR 210.4(f)).
Submissions should refer to the
investigation number (‘‘Inv. No. 337–
TA–1065’’) in a prominent place on the
cover page and/or first page. (See
Handbook for Electronic Filing
Procedures, https://www.usitc.gov/
documents/handbook_on_
filing_procedures.pdf). Persons with
questions regarding filing should
contact the Secretary (202–205–2000).
Any person desiring to submit a
document to the Commission in
confidence must request confidential
treatment. All such requests should be
directed to the Secretary to the
Commission and include a full
statement of the reasons why the
Commission should grant such
treatment. See 19 CFR 201.6. Documents
for which confidential treatment by the
Commission is properly sought will be
treated accordingly. All information,
including confidential business
information and documents for which
confidential treatment is properly
sought, submitted to the Commission for
purposes of this Investigation may be
disclosed to and used: (i) By the
Commission, its employees and Offices,
and contract personnel (a) for
developing or maintaining the records
of this or a related proceeding, or (b) in
internal investigations, audits, reviews,
and evaluations relating to the
programs, personnel, and operations of
the Commission including under 5
U.S.C. Appendix 3; or (ii) by U.S.
government employees and contract
personnel 1 solely for cybersecurity
purposes. All non-confidential written
submissions will be available for public
inspection at the Office of the Secretary
and on EDIS.
The authority for the Commission’s
determination is contained in Section
337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as
amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and in part
210 of the Commission’s Rules of
Practice and Procedure (19 CFR part
210).

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

By order of the Commission.
Issued: December 12, 2018.
Lisa Barton,
Secretary to the Commission.

On December 12, 2018, the
Department of Justice lodged a proposed
consent decree with the United States
District Court for the District of
Connecticut in the lawsuit entitled
United States v. Tradebe Treatment and
Recycling Northeast, LLC, Civil Action
No. 3:18-cv-02031. In a complaint, the
United States, on behalf of the U.S.

[FR Doc. 2018–27301 Filed 12–17–18; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7020–02–P
1 All contract personnel will sign appropriate
nondisclosure agreements.
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Antitrust Division
Notice Pursuant to the National
Cooperative Research and Production
Act of 1993—UHD Alliance, Inc.
Notice is hereby given that, on
November 16, 2018, pursuant to Section
6(a) of the National Cooperative
Research and Production Act of 1993,
15 U.S.C. 4301 et seq. (‘‘the Act’’), UHD
Alliance, Inc. (‘‘UHD Alliance’’) filed
written notifications simultaneously
with the Attorney General and the
Federal Trade Commission disclosing
changes in its membership. The
notifications were filed for the purpose
of extending the Act’s provisions
limiting the recovery of antitrust
plaintiffs to actual damages under
specified circumstances. Specifically,
Charter Communications, St. Louis, MO,
has been added as a party to this
venture.
No other changes have been made in
either the membership or planned
activity of the group research project.
Membership in this group research
project remains open, and UHD Alliance
intends to file additional written
notifications disclosing all changes in
membership.
On June 17, 2015, UHD Alliance filed
its original notification pursuant to
Section 6(a) of the Act. The Department
of Justice published a notice in the
Federal Register pursuant to Section
6(b) of the Act on July 17, 2015 (80 FR
42537).
The last notification was filed with
the Department on September 6, 2018.
A notice was published in the Federal
Register pursuant to Section 6(b) of the
Act on October 17, 2018 (83 FR 52557).

Environmental Protection Agency,
alleges that Tradebe Treatment and
Recycling Northeast, LLC violated the
Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. 7401, et seq.,
for failure to comply with EPA
regulations for off-site waste and
recovery operations, 40 CFR part 63,
subpart DD, at its facilities located in
Bridgeport and Meriden, Connecticut.
The Complaint also alleges a number of
violations at the facilities for failure to
comply with permits issued under the
Resource Conservation and Recovery
Act, 42 U.S.C. 6901, et seq., and its
underlying regulations at 40 CFR part
264, subparts AA, BB and CC. The
proposed consent decree, among other
things, requires that Tradebe maintain
full compliance with its RCRA permits
at the facilities and with applicable
hazardous waste regulations, including
RCRA air emissions regulations. Both
facilities will install new air emission
control systems to permanently replace
their current control systems, and will
adopt additional emission reduction
measures for a two year period. Tradebe
will also pay a $525,000 settlement
penalty.
The publication of this notice opens
a period for public comment on the
proposed Consent Decree. Comments
should be addressed to the Assistant
Attorney General, Environment and
Natural Resources Division, and should
refer to United States v. Tradebe
Treatment and Recycling, LLC, D.J. Ref.
No. 90–5–2–1–11838. All comments
must be submitted no later than thirty
(30) days after the publication date of
this notice. Comments may be
submitted either by email or by mail:
To submit
comments:

Send them to:

Suzanne Morris,
Chief, Premerger and Division Statistics Unit,
Antitrust Division.

By email .......

[FR Doc. 2018–27326 Filed 12–17–18; 8:45 am]

By mail .........

pubcommentees.enrd@usdoj.gov.
Assistant Attorney General,
U.S. DOJ—ENRD, P.O.
Box 7611, Washington,
D.C. 20044–7611.
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DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Notice of Lodging of Proposed
Consent Decree Under the Clean Air
Act and the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act
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During the public comment period,
the proposed Consent Decree may be
examined and downloaded at this
Justice Department website: https://
www.justice.gov/enrd/consent-decrees.
We will provide a paper copy of the
proposed Consent Decree upon written
request and payment of reproduction
costs. Please mail your request and
payment to: Consent Decree Library,
U.S. DOJ—ENRD, P.O. Box 7611,
Washington, DC 20044–7611.
Please enclose a check or money order
for $10.25 (25 cents per page
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reproduction cost), payable to the
United States Treasury.
Robert Maher,
Assistant Chief, Environmental Enforcement
Section, Environment & Natural Resources
Division.
[FR Doc. 2018–27300 Filed 12–17–18; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4410–15–P

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Employment and Training
Administration
Notice of Determinations Regarding
Eligibility To Apply for Trade
Adjustment Assistance
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In accordance with the Section 223
(19 U.S.C. 2273) of the Trade Act of
1974 (19 U.S.C. 2271, et seq.) (‘‘Act’’), as
amended, the Department of Labor
herein presents summaries of
determinations regarding eligibility to
apply for trade adjustment assistance
under Chapter 2 of the Act (‘‘TAA’’) for
workers by (TA–W) number issued
during the period of October 20, 2018
through November 9, 2018. (This Notice
primarily follows the language of the
Trade Act. In some places however,
changes such as the inclusion of
subheadings, a reorganization of
language, or ‘‘and,’’ ‘‘or,’’ or other words
are added for clarification.)
Section 222(a)—Workers of a Primary
Firm
In order for an affirmative
determination to be made for workers of
a primary firm and a certification issued
regarding eligibility to apply for TAA,
the group eligibility requirements under
Section 222(a) of the Act (19 U.S.C.
2272(a)) must be met, as follows:
(1) The first criterion (set forth in
Section 222(a)(1) of the Act, 19 U.S.C.
2272(a)(1)) is that a significant number
or proportion of the workers in such
workers’ firm (or ‘‘such firm’’) have
become totally or partially separated, or
are threatened to become totally or
partially separated; AND (2(A) or 2(B)
below)
(2) The second criterion (set forth in
Section 222(a)(2) of the Act, 19 U.S.C.
2272(a)(2)) may be satisfied by either (A)
the Increased Imports Path, or (B) the
Shift in Production or Services to a
Foreign Country Path/Acquisition of
Articles or Services from a Foreign
Country Path, as follows:
(A) Increased Imports Path:
(i) The sales or production, or both, of
such firm, have decreased absolutely;
AND (ii and iii below)
(ii) (I) imports of articles or services
like or directly competitive with articles
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produced or services supplied by such
firm have increased; OR
(II)(aa) imports of articles like or
directly competitive with articles into
which one or more component parts
produced by such firm are directly
incorporated, have increased; OR
(II)(bb) imports of articles like or
directly competitive with articles which
are produced directly using the services
supplied by such firm, have increased;
OR
(III) imports of articles directly
incorporating one or more component
parts produced outside the United
States that are like or directly
competitive with imports of articles
incorporating one or more component
parts produced by such firm have
increased; AND
(iii) the increase in imports described
in clause (ii) contributed importantly to
such workers’ separation or threat of
separation and to the decline in the
sales or production of such firm; OR
(B) Shift in Production or Services to
a Foreign Country Path OR Acquisition
of Articles or Services From a Foreign
Country Path:
(i)(I) there has been a shift by such
workers’ firm to a foreign country in the
production of articles or the supply of
services like or directly competitive
with articles which are produced or
services which are supplied by such
firm; OR
(II) such workers’ firm has acquired
from a foreign country articles or
services that are like or directly
competitive with articles which are
produced or services which are
supplied by such firm; AND
(ii) the shift described in clause (i)(I)
or the acquisition of articles or services
described in clause (i)(II) contributed
importantly to such workers’ separation
or threat of separation.
Section 222(b)—Adversely Affected
Secondary Workers
In order for an affirmative
determination to be made for adversely
affected secondary workers of a firm and
a certification issued regarding
eligibility to apply for TAA, the group
eligibility requirements of Section
222(b) of the Act (19 U.S.C. 2272(b))
must be met, as follows:
(1) a significant number or proportion
of the workers in the workers’ firm or
an appropriate subdivision of the firm
have become totally or partially
separated, or are threatened to become
totally or partially separated; AND
(2) the workers’ firm is a supplier or
downstream producer to a firm that
employed a group of workers who
received a certification of eligibility
under Section 222(a) of the Act (19
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U.S.C. 2272(a)), and such supply or
production is related to the article or
service that was the basis for such
certification (as defined in subsection
222(c)(3) and (4) of the Act (19 U.S.C.
2272(c)(3) and (4)); AND
(3) either—
(A) the workers’ firm is a supplier and
the component parts it supplied to the
firm described in paragraph (2)
accounted for at least 20 percent of the
production or sales of the workers’ firm;
OR
(B) a loss of business by the workers’
firm with the firm described in
paragraph (2) contributed importantly to
the workers’ separation or threat of
separation determined under paragraph
(1).
Section 222(e)—Firms Identified by the
International Trade Commission
In order for an affirmative
determination to be made for adversely
affected workers in firms identified by
the International Trade Commission and
a certification issued regarding
eligibility to apply for TAA, the group
eligibility requirements of Section
222(e) of the Act (19 U.S.C. 2272(e))
must be met, by following criteria (1),
(2), and (3) as follows:
(1) the workers’ firm is publicly
identified by name by the International
Trade Commission as a member of a
domestic industry in an investigation
resulting in—
(A) an affirmative determination of
serious injury or threat thereof under
section 202(b)(1) of the Act (19 U.S.C.
2252(b)(1)); OR
(B) an affirmative determination of
market disruption or threat thereof
under section 421(b)(1) of the Act (19
U.S.C. 2436(b)(1)); OR
(C) an affirmative final determination
of material injury or threat thereof under
section 705(b)(1)(A) or 735(b)(1)(A) of
the Tariff Act of 1930 (19 U.S.C.
1671d(b)(1)(A) and 1673d(b)(1)(A));
AND
(2) the petition is filed during the
1-year period beginning on the date on
which—
(A) a summary of the report submitted
to the President by the International
Trade Commission under section
202(f)(1) of the Trade Act (19 U.S.C.
2252(f)(1)) with respect to the
affirmative determination described in
paragraph (1)(A) is published in the
Federal Register under section 202(f)(3)
(19 U.S.C. 2252(f)(3)); OR
(B) notice of an affirmative
determination described in
subparagraph (B) or (C) of paragraph (1)
is published in the Federal Register;
AND
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